
Cabazon Water District 
14618 Broadway Street  P.O. Box 297 

Cabazon, CA 92230 

BOARD MEETING PACKET 

January 17, 2023 

FAC Meeting at 5:00 pm 

Regular Meeting at 6:00 pm 

Page 1 of 191



Cabazon Water District 

January 17, 2023 FAC Meeting Agenda 

1 

Business (951) 849-4442 • FAX (951) 849-2519 

Cabazon Water District 
14618 Broadway Street • P.O. Box 297 

Cabazon, California 92230 

FINANCE & AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING 

AGENDA 
Meeting Location: 
14618 Broadway St. 
Cabazon, CA 92230 

Teleconference: 
Dial-in #: 978-990-5321 
Access Code: 117188 

Meeting Date: 
Tuesday, January 17, 2023 – 5:00 PM 

CALL TO ORDER,  
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE,  
ROLL CALL 
FINANCE & AUDIT COMMITTEE 

1. Discussion: Finance & Audit Committee Report 

 Balance Sheet

 Profit and Loss Budget Comparison

 Capital Detail
2. Finance & Audit Committee District Payables Review and Approval/Signing

PUBLIC COMMENT 

Any person may address the Board of Directors at this time on any matter within the subject matter jurisdiction of the 
Cabazon Water District; however, any matter that requires action will be referred to staff for investigation and 
reported at a subsequent Board of Directors meeting.  The Board of Directors is prohibited by law from discussing or 
taking immediate action on items during this public comment period.  To comment on specific agenda items, please 
advise the Board secretary prior to the meeting. Each public comment will be limited to three (3) minutes.  
Individuals may not give their time away to another spokesperson. After two (2) minutes, the speaker will be 
notified that he/she has one (1) minute remaining. AB 1234 ORAL REPORTS (Gov. Code Sec. 53232.3(d)) 

ADJOURNMENT 
ADA Compliance Issues 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act & Government Code Section 54954.2, if special assistance is needed to 
participate in a Board meeting, please contact the Clerk of the Board at (951) 849-4442.  Notification of at least 48 hours prior to 
meeting time will assist staff in assuring that reasonable arrangements can be made to provide accessibility at the meeting. 

Page 2 of 191



January 17, 2023 Regular Board Meeting Agenda 1 

Page 1 of 3 

Cabazon Water District 
14618 Broadway Street • P.O. Box 297 

Cabazon, California 92230 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

AGENDA 

Meeting Location: 
14618 Broadway St. 
Cabazon, CA 92230 

Teleconference: 
Dial-in #: 978-990-5321 
Access Code: 117188 

Email: info@cabazonwater.org 

Meeting Date: 
Tuesday, January 17, 2023 – 6:00 PM 

CALL TO ORDER 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
REMEMBRANCE OF OUR SERVICE MEN AND WOMEN 
ROLL CALL 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

All matters in this category are considered to be consistent with the Board/District goals, District Policies and 
Regulations adopted and/or approved by the Board of Directors, and will be enacted in one motion.  There will be no 
separate discussion of these items.  If discussion is required, items may be removed from the consent calendar and 
will be considered separately. 

1. Approval of:
a. Finance and Audit Committee Meeting Minutes and Warrants of December 14, 2022
b. Regular Board Meeting Minutes and Warrants of December 14, 2022
c. Reaffirmation of Resolution 04-2021, declaring the continuation of virtual meetings due to COVID-19

2. Warrants – None
3. Awards of Contracts – None

UPDATES 

1. Update: CWD Operations Report 
(by GM Pollack) 

Page 3 of 191



January 17, 2023 Regular Board Meeting Agenda 2 

 

Page 2 of 3 
 

OLD BUSINESS 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. Discussion/Action: Award of Contract for Broadway/Main Cluster Valve Repair; 4 Bids:  
a. MCC Equipment Rentals, Inc. (lowest bidder)  
b. Borden Excavating, Inc.  
c. T.E. Roberts, Inc.  
d. Weka, Inc.  

 
2. Discussion/Action: Proposal by Krieger & Stewart regarding the ARPA-funded Reservoir  

   Corrosion Repair/Prevention Project 
 

3. Discussion/Action: Community Water Systems Alliance (“CWSA”) Benefits 
 

4. Discussion/Action: Realignment of Cabazon Water District Director Committees  
a. Collaborative Agencies 
b. Community Action Committee 
c. Community Water Systems Alliance Committee 
d. Finance and Audit Committee 
e. Personnel Committee 
f. San Gorgonio Pass Regional Water Alliance Committee 
g. Special Projects Committee 

 
PUBLIC COMMENTS  
 

Any person may address the Board of Directors at this time on any matter within the subject matter jurisdiction of the 
Cabazon Water District that is not listed on the agenda; however, any matter that requires action will be referred to 
staff for investigation and reported at a subsequent Board of Directors meeting.  The Board of Directors is prohibited 
by law from discussing or taking immediate action on items during this public comment period.  To comment on 
specific agenda items, please advise the Board secretary prior to the meeting. Each public comment will be limited to 
three (3) minutes.  Individuals may not give their time away to another spokesperson. After two (2) minutes, the 
speaker will be notified that he/she has one (1) minute remaining. AB 1234 ORAL REPORTS (Gov. Code Sec. 
53232.3(d)) 
 
GENERAL MANAGER/BOARD COMMENTS 
 

1. Future Agenda Items 
 

The Board Chair or the majority of the Board may direct staff to investigate and report back to an 
individual(s) and the Board on matters suggested or direct the General Manager/Board Secretary to 
place the matter on a future Board meeting. 

 

 Suggested agenda items from the Public. 

 Suggested agenda items from Management. 

 Suggested agenda items from Board Members. 
 

2. Management Comments 
 

Page 4 of 191



January 17, 2023 Regular Board Meeting Agenda 3 

 

Page 3 of 3 
 

Staff members may speak on items of information not requiring comment or discussion to the Board 
and public. Topics which may be included on a future meeting agenda may be presented but cannot 
be discussed. (3 minutes) 
 

3. Board Member Comments 
 
Board members may speak on items of information not requiring comment or discussion to the 
Board and public. (3 minutes) 

 
MISCELLANEOUS 
 

1. Future Board Items/Next Board Meeting Date(s) 
 

a. Finance & Audit Workshop – Tuesday, Jan. 17, 2023, 5:00 pm 
b. Regular Board Meeting – Tuesday, Jan. 17, 2023, 6:00 pm  
c. San Gorgonio Pass Regional Water Alliance Meeting – Monday, Jan. 23, 2023, 5:00 pm 
d. Community Water Systems Alliance Meeting – Wednesday, Jan. 25, 2023, 8:30 am 
e. Collaborative Agencies Meeting at Beaumont Unified School District – TBD – 2023   
f. Community Action Committee Meeting – TBD – 2023  
g. Personnel Committee – TBD 

 
 
ADJOURNMENT 

ADA Compliance Issues 
 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act & Government Code Section 54954.2, if special assistance is needed to participate in a 
Board meeting, please contact the Clerk of the Board at (951) 849-4442.  Notification of at least 48 hours prior to meeting time will assist staff 
in assuring that reasonable arrangements can be made to provide access. 

Page 5 of 191



 Cabazon Water District

 Balance Sheet
As of December 31, 2022

Dec 31, 22

1 ASSETS

2 Current Assets

3 Checking/Savings 702,473$       702,473           Chase

4 Accounts Receivable 238,711         818,492           LAIF

5 LAIF 818,492         1,520,965$      Cash & LAIF

6 Bank of NY Trustee Accounts 65,303           

7 Prepaid Expenses 17,610           

8 Inventory 109,315         

9 Total Current Assets 1,951,905      

10 Fixed Assets

11 Total Fixed Assets 14,112,350    

12 Accumulated Depreciation (6,663,221)    

13 Net Fixed Assets 7,449,129      

14 TOTAL ASSETS 9,401,034$    

15 LIABILITIES & FUND BALANCE

16 Liabilities

17 Current Liabilities

18 Accounts Payable 25,988$         

19 Other Current Liabilities

20 Dues to Other Gov't SGPWA 60,817           

21 Customer Deposits 10,746           

22 Current Portion DWR-H Loan 43,208           

23 Current Portion Zion's Bank Loan 87,077           

24 Current Portion 2022 Ford 12,590           

25 Accrued Expenses 24,081           

26 Total Current Liabilities 264,508         

27 Long Term Liabilities

28 DWR-H Loan Payable (2026) 153,019         

29 Ford Long Term 60,728           

30 RCEDA Loan Payable 300,000         

31 Total Long Term Liabilities 513,748         

32 Total Liabilities 778,255         

33 Total Fund balance 8,622,779      

34 TOTAL LIABILITIES & FUND BALANCE 9,401,034$    

*No assurance provided on these financial statements. These financial statements do not include a statement of cash flows. Substantially 

all disclosures required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States not included. Page 6 of 191



 Cabazon Water District

Budget to Actual
 For the Period Ended December 31, 2022

A B C D=B/C

Dec-22 Current YTD

FY 22/23 

Amended 

Budget

YTD 

(50%)

1 REVENUES

2 OPERATING INCOME

3 Base Rate - Water Bills 48,192$           270,269$         563,300$         48%

4 Commodity Sales 48,078              448,111           757,300           59%

5 DHPO Contract 17,355              138,547           182,500           76%

6 DHPO Capacity Credit (1,750)              (10,500)            (10,500)            100%

7 Fire Sales - Water Bills 342                   2,707                5,600                48%

8 Fees & Charges 4,681                36,083              51,000              71%

9 Basic Facilities Fee 9,306                42,333              75,200              56%

10 Stand By Fees - Tax Revenue -                   10,234              105,900           10%

11 TOTAL OPERATING INCOME 126,205           937,784           1,730,300        54%

12 NON-OPERATING INCOME

13 Property Taxes 4,073                5,185                86,700              6%

14 Cell Tower Lease Income 2,725                16,350              26,600              61%

15 Miscellaneous Non-Operating Income -                   4,214                -                   0%

16 Interest Income 693                   7,799                7,600                103%

17 TOTAL NON-OPERATING INCOME 7,491                33,548              120,900           28%

18 TOTAL REVENUES 133,696           971,332           1,851,200        52%

19 EXPENSES

20 PAYROLL

21 Directors Fees 1,000                8,300                25,000              33%

22 Management & Customer Service - As Amended 31,165              112,992           245,600           46%

23 Field Workers - As Amended 25,061              105,764           202,200           52%

24 Employee Benefits Expense - As Amended 12,669              75,707              154,700           49%

25 Payroll Taxes - As Amended 4,576                18,666              37,300              50%

26 TOTAL PAYROLL 74,471              321,429           664,800           48%

27 OPERATIONAL EXPENSES

28 Facilities, Wells, T&D

29 Lab Fees 178                   2,248                13,100              17%

30 Meter Testing & Repair -                   475                   5,100                9%

31 Utilities - Wells 14,825              80,269              150,400           53%

32 Line R&M Materials - As Amended 118                   45,951              75,600              61%

33 Well Maintenance 1,518                29,877              40,400              74%

34 Security 1,649                11,372              29,500              39%

35 Engineering Services - As Amended -                   14,980              40,000              37%

36 Facilities, Wells, T&D - Other 583                   15,568              16,600              94%

37 Total Facilities, Wells, T&D 18,870              200,740           370,700           54%

38 Office Expenses

39 Utilities - Office 1,843                16,912              36,800              46%

40 Water Billing System 216                   1,293                2,400                54%

41 Supplies & Equipment 544                   3,397                13,200              26%

42 Copier & Supplies 405                   2,468                5,500                45%

*No assurance provided on these financial statements. These financial statements do not include a statement of cash flows. Substantially all 

disclosures required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States not included. Page 7 of 191



 Cabazon Water District

Budget to Actual
 For the Period Ended December 31, 2022

Dec-22 Current YTD

FY 22/23 

Amended 

Budget

YTD 

(50%)

43 Dues & Subscriptions 172$                 381$                 2,500$              15%

44 Postage 1,387                5,625                10,600              53%

45 Printing & Publications -                   292                   600                   49%

46 Computer Services 2,520                17,385              38,400              45%

47 Air Conditioning Servicing 453                   2,718                5,500                49%

48 Community Water Systems Alliance (CWSA) -                   250                   3,000                8%

49 Office Expenses - Other 67                     642                   2,100                31%

50 Total Office Expenses 5,763                34,452              120,600           29%

51 Support Services

52 Financial Audit -                   8,484                24,700              34%

53 Accounting 3,579                21,845              42,000              52%

54 Legal Services -                   8,585                63,500              14%

55 Payroll/Bank Service Charge 576                   2,784                5,500                51%

56 Website Support - As Amended 204                   964                   900                   107%

57 Insurance 3,141                18,843              37,500              50%

58 Total Support Services 7,499                61,506              174,100           35%

59 Training/Travel 185                   3,205                10,500              31%

60 Other Fees/SWRCB 3,527                5,111                9,700                53%

61 Service Tools & Equipment

62 Shop Supplies and Small Tools 659                   3,655                6,300                58%

63 Vehicle Fuel - As Amended 554                   3,312                13,050              25%

64 Employee Uniforms 129                   780                   1,100                71%

65 Safety 1,322                2,022                1,800                112%

66 Tractor Expenses/ Maintenance 845                   845                   3,900                22%

67 Equipment Rental 640                   5,360                9,000                60%

68 Service Trucks - R&M 60                     3,931                13,800              28%

69 Water Operations On-Call Phones 345                   2,418                3,800                64%

70 Total Service Tools & Equipment 4,553                22,322              52,750              42%

71 NON-OPERATING EXPENSES

72 Loan Interest & Processing Fee 176                   7,159                12,600              57%

73 Bad Debt Expense -                   -                   1,300                0%

74 Miscellaneous -                   -                   1,500                0%

75 TOTAL NON-OPERATING EXPENSES 176                   7,159                15,400              46%

76 TOTAL EXPENSES 116,888           672,835           1,418,550        47%

77 INCOME BEFORE CAPITAL & GSA 16,808              298,496           432,650           69%

78 Capital Projects - Net of Grant Funding 21,558              20,184              (285,000)          

79 Debt Service - Principal (1,304)              (72,005)            (144,000)          50%

80 SGMA / GSA -                   -                   (35,000)            0%

81 NET INCOME / (LOSS) 37,063$           246,675$         (31,350)$          

*No assurance provided on these financial statements. These financial statements do not include a statement of cash flows. Substantially all 

disclosures required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States not included. Page 8 of 191



 Cabazon Water District

Capital Detail
 For the Period Ended December 31, 2022

A B C D=B/C

Dec-22 Current YTD

FY 22/23 

Budget

YTD 

(50%)

CAPITAL PROJECTS

1 RESERVE FUNDED

2 Well & Tank Repairs (176)$                 (343)$              (225,000)$     0%

3 Customer Shut-Off Valves -                     (154)                (40,000)         0%

4 Meter Replacement (1,911)                (11,090)           (20,000)         55%

5 TOTAL RESERVE FUNDED PROJECTS (2,087)                (11,586)           (285,000)       4%

6 GRANT FUNDED

7 DWR

8 Isolation Valves (12,813)              (40,844)           (1,243,000)    3%

9 Grant Funding - DWR 33,118               33,118            1,243,000      3%

10 SWRCB

11 Groundwater Well Improvements (594)                   (6,905)             (499,000)       1%

12 Grant Funding - SWRCB 5,601                 48,067            499,000         10%

13 ARPA

14 Broadway & Main St. Gate Valve (1,666)                (1,666)             (100,000)       2%

15 T2, T3, & T4 Recoating -                     -                  (500,000)       0%

16 Grant Funding - ARPA -                     -                  600,000         0%

17 NET GRANT FUNDED PROJECTS 23,645               31,770            -                0%

18 TOTAL NET COST OF CAPITAL PROJECTS 21,558$             20,184$          (285,000)$     

Total Project Activity Summary

Groundwater Well Improvement Project Expenses

 Funding 

Received 

Total 

Receivable

Total Budget 499,000$           499,000$        

Groundwater Well Improvements - FY 22 (42,466)              42,466            -                 

Groundwater Well Improvements - FY 23 (6,905)                -                  6,905             

Total (49,371)$            42,466$          6,905$           

Isolation Valves Project Expenses

 Funding 

Received 

 Total 

Receivable 

Total Budget 1,243,000$        1,243,000$     

Isolation Valves - FY 22 (33,118)              33,118            -                 

Isolation Valves - FY 23 (40,844)              -                  40,844           

Total (73,962)$            33,118$          40,844$         

*No assurance provided on these financial statements. These financial statements do not include a statement of cash flows. Substantially 

all disclosures required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States not included. Page 9 of 191



Cabazon Water District 

December 14, 2022 FAC Meeting Minutes 

1 

 

 

 

 

Business (951) 849-4442 • FAX (951) 849-2519 
 

 
 

Cabazon Water District 
14618 Broadway Street • P.O. Box 297 

Cabazon, California 92230 
 

FINANCE & AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING  
 

MINUTES 
 

Meeting Location: 
Cabazon Water District Office 

14618 Broadway Street 
Cabazon, California 92230 

 
Teleconference: 

Dial-in #: 978-990-5321 
Access Code: 117188 

 

Meeting Date: 
 Wednesday, December 14, 2022 – 5:00 PM  
CALL TO ORDER  
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
ROLL CALL 
 
Director Terry Tincher - Present 
Director Sarah Wargo - Present 
Michael Pollack, General Manager - Present 
Evelyn Aguilar, Board Secretary - Present 
 
*Note: This meeting was recorded by the District  
 
FINANCE & AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

1. Discussion:  Finance & Audit Committee Report 

 Balance Sheet 

 Profit and Loss Budget Comparison 

 Capital Detail 
 

 
2. Finance & Audit Committee District Payables Review and Approval/Signing (done after adjournment)  

Page 10 of 191



Cabazon Water District 

December 14, 2022 FAC Meeting Minutes 

2 

 

 

 

 

Business (951) 849-4442 • FAX (951) 849-2519 
 

Main Reports:  
• Balance Sheet – depicts what the District owns and what the District owes.  
• Profit & Loss Budget Performance – shows how the District is performing against the budget, and the condition of 
 the District fiscal year to date.  
• Capital Detail – shows activity pertaining to Capital Projects.  

 
Balance Sheet: 
The District’s combined Cash with Chase and LAIF balance was $1,457,480 at month end. The District’s total 
liabilities were approximately $776,155 at month end. 
 
Profit and Loss: - Year to date is 42% of the year 

 

6. DHPO Capacity Credit: This account includes the contractual credit given to DHPO on a monthly basis. This 

credit is $1,750 per month and will expire in December 2022. YTD is at 83% of budget and should end in line with 

budget by the time the credit expires. 

8. Fees & Charges: This account includes penalty fees, fire flow tests, new account fees, incident fees, and returned 

check fees. YTD is trending over budget at 62% due to more penalty fees than anticipated. 

10. Standby Fees – Tax Revenue: This accounts for standby fees accessed to all parcels in the District. The 

minimum fee is $5/acre and can be more depending on the location and nature of the parcel. The bulk of these 

receipts often occur around January and May and can occasionally cause YTD to trend over or under budget. 

13. Property Taxes: This account includes Ad Valorem tax revenues apportioned by Riverside County. Property Tax 

receipts are mainly received after December 10th and May 10th when property tax payments are due to the County 

of Riverside Tax Collector’s Office. 

15. Miscellaneous Non-Operating Income: This account includes recycling revenues, insurance reimbursements, and 

other miscellaneous revenues. This account is not budgeted due to unpredictable activity. YTD includes $4.1K for 

a truck sold at auction. 

16. Interest Income: This account includes interest earnings in the District’s LAIF and other investment accounts, and 

interest charged on overdue customer balances. YTD is trending over budget at 93% due to higher interest 

collected on customer bills than anticipated and higher interest returns on the BNY Reserve Fund, BNY 

Repayment Fund and LAIF. 

18. Total Revenues: YTD is currently at 45% of the year.  

30. Meters: This account includes the costs of meter repairs & meter testing and expenses will vary throughout the 

year. 

32. Line R&M Materials: This account includes the expenses relating to materials for line repair & maintenance. YTD 

is trending over budget at 61% due to bulk purchases to stock up due to shipping delays. 

33. Well Maintenance: This account Includes repairs, maintenance and chemical expenses relating to the District 

wells. YTD is trending over budget at 70% due to $8K paid for SCADA and PLC troubleshooting. 

36. Facilities, Wells, T&D – Other: This account includes the generator service contract expenses, site landscaping & 

maintenance, chlorinators, and SCADA. YTD is trending over budget at 90% due to a $4K payment for Tank #3 

altitude valve repairs and $5.9K payment for Almond Vault preventative maintenance. 

Page 11 of 191



Cabazon Water District 

December 14, 2022 FAC Meeting Minutes 

3 

 

 

 

 

Business (951) 849-4442 • FAX (951) 849-2519 
 

40. Water Billing System: This account includes the annual water billing system maintenance costs. YTD is in line 

with budget. The current billing system will need to be upgraded in the next couple of years, since it was created 

on an outdated program.  

43. Dues & Subscriptions: This account includes various annual dues and fees. Expenses will vary depending upon 

timing of dues renewals. 

48. CA Water System Alliance: This account includes the monthly membership fees for the Water System Alliance. 

YTD is at 8% of budget due to the timing of bills. Director Wargo asked staff to look into the benefits of this group.  

49. Office Expenses – Other: This account includes miscellaneous office expenses.  

54. Legal Services: This account includes the costs of legal services for the District. YTD will vary depending upon the 

timing of legal services needed. 

56. Website Support: This account includes monthly web hosting costs. The District is paying $75/month for 

website hosting services not anticipated in budget that will cause account to be over budget by year-end. YTD is 

trending over budget at 85% due to the addition of Navigator Search Service. 

59. Training/Travel: This account includes staff/board training expenses and any related travel costs. YTD will vary 

depending on timing of training and travel activities. 

63. Vehicle Fuel: This account includes fuel costs for District vehicles. YTD will vary depending on timing of bills 

received. 

64. Employee Uniforms: This account includes employee uniform purchases and reimbursements. YTD will vary 

depending on timing of bills received. 

68. Service Trucks R&M: This account includes repair & maintenance costs for district vehicles. YTD is at 28% of 

budget. 

76. Total Expenses: YTD is currently at 39% of the year.  

As of November 30th, the fiscal year-to-date net income is $209,983. 
 

Capital Detail 

 

2. Well & Tank Repair: This account includes activity for the Bonita Vault Rehabilitation project. 
4. Meter Replacement: This account is for the Water Meter Replacement Program. YTD is at 46% of 

budget. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Any person may address the Board of Directors at this time on any matter within the subject matter jurisdiction of the 
Cabazon Water District; however, any matter that requires action will be referred to staff for investigation and 
reported at a subsequent Board of Directors meeting.  The Board of Directors is prohibited by law from discussing or 
taking immediate action on items during this public comment period.  To comment on specific agenda items, please 
advise the Board secretary prior to the meeting. Each public comment will be limited to three (3) minutes.  
Individuals may not give their time away to another spokesperson. After two (2) minutes, the speaker will be 
notified that he/she has one (1) minute remaining. AB 1234 ORAL REPORTS (Gov. Code Sec. 53232.3(d)) 
 

Page 12 of 191



Cabazon Water District 

December 14, 2022 FAC Meeting Minutes 

4 

 

 

 

 

Business (951) 849-4442 • FAX (951) 849-2519 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
Meeting adjourned at 5:28 PM on Wednesday, December 14, 2022 
 
 
 
 
____________________________________        
Sarah Wargo, Board Chair     Evelyn Aguilar, Secretary 
Board of Directors      Board of Directors 
Cabazon Water District      Cabazon Water District 
 

ADA Compliance Issues 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act & Government Code Section 54954.2, if special assistance is needed to 
participate in a Board meeting, please contact the Clerk of the Board at (951) 849-4442.  Notification of at least 48 hours prior to 
meeting time will assist staff in assuring that reasonable arrangements can be made to provide accessibility at the meeting. 

Page 13 of 191



Cabazon Water District 

December 14, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

1 

 

Page 1 of 4 
 

 
 

Cabazon Water District 
14618 Broadway Street • P.O. Box 297 

Cabazon, California 92230 
 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
 

MINUTES 
 

Meeting Location: 
14618 Broadway St. 
Cabazon, CA 92230 

 

Teleconference: 
Dial-in #: 978-990-5321 
Access Code: 117188 

Email: info@cabazonwater.org 
 

Meeting Date: 
 Wednesday, December 14, 2022 – 6:00 PM  
 
CALL TO ORDER 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
REMEMBRANCE OF OUR SERVICE MEN AND WOMEN 
ROLL CALL 
 
Director Taffy Brock - Present 
Director Terry Tincher - Present 
Director Diana Morris - Present 
Director Alan Davis - Present 
Director Sarah Wargo - Present 
Michael Pollack, General Manager - Present 
Evelyn Aguilar, Board Secretary - Present 
 
Note: This meeting was recorded by the District  
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

All matters in this category are considered to be consistent with the Board/District goals, District Policies and 
Regulations adopted and/or approved by the Board of Directors, and will be enacted in one motion.  There will be no 
separate discussion of these items.  If discussion is required, items may be removed from the consent calendar and 
will be considered separately. 
 

1. Approval of: 
a. Finance and Audit Committee Meeting Minutes and Warrants of November 15, 2022 

Page 14 of 191



Cabazon Water District 

December 14, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

2 

 

Page 2 of 4 
 

b. Regular Board Meeting Minutes and Warrants of November 15, 2022 
c. Reaffirmation of Resolution 04-2021, declaring the continuation of virtual meetings due to COVID-19 

 
Motion to approve following consent calendar items: (a) Finance and Audit Committee Meeting Minutes and 
Warrants of November 15, 202, (b) Regular Board Meeting Minutes and Warrants of November 15, 2022, (c) 
Reaffirmation of Resolution 04-2021, declaring the continuation of virtual meetings due to COVID-19 made by 
Director Tincher and 2nd by Director Morris 

 
Director Brock - Aye 
Director Tincher - Aye 
Director Morris - Aye 
Director Davis - Aye 
Director Wargo - Aye 

 
2. Warrants – None 
3. Awards of Contracts:  

 

a. Isolation Valve Improvement Project – Borden Excavating Inc. (per the Nov. 15, 2022 Board Meeting) 
 
UPDATES  
 

1. Update:   CWD Operations Report  
(by GM Pollack) 

 
 On 12/05, Bay City Electric performed routine maintenance on the generator at Well #2.  
 A new address sign was installed at the Main/Pecan District storage yard.  
 On 11/29, the GM met with Belinda Carrol of CRWA for an assessment of the District. She needed 

information about the District. CRWA is planning to assist with a leak audit and grant opportunities.  
 Upcoming revenue for new customers is estimated at around $64k.  
 On 12/06, the SGP GSAs voted to allow SGPWA to apply for a grant for 4 new monitoring wells.  
 The estimated total to replace the Bonita PRV Station comes out to about $74k. $225k is in the budget for 

Well & Tank repairs, but the Tank repairs are covered by grant funding.  
 The 2000 GMC Sierra has over 300k miles. Over $10k has been spent on repair & maintenance since 2019 

for this vehicle. A new Toyota Tacoma is $29k, a Ford Ranger is $34k, and a Chevy Colorado is $32k.  
 Legend Pump will be sending a quote for the rebuild & installation of Well #4. Additional quotes from other 

contractors will also be obtained.  
 

OLD BUSINESS 
 

1. Discussion/Action:  Bonita Ave PRV Station Replacement Project   
 
 This item was discussed in more detail during the November 15 Board meeting, but was tabled so that 

the full Board could be part of the discussion.  
 

Motion to approve Krieger &Stewart’s proposal and the quote for materials for the Bonita PRV Station 
Replacement project made by Director Tincher and 2nd by Director Davis. 
 
Director Brock - Aye 
Director Tincher - Aye 
Director Morris - Aye 
Director Davis - Aye 
Director Wargo - Aye 

Page 15 of 191



Cabazon Water District 

December 14, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

3 

 

Page 3 of 4 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. Discussion/Action: Change in Community Action Committee Meeting Procedures  
 

 Director Morris explained that the CAC meetings are usually held once a month, but have been put on hold 
due to the Holidays and issues with finding a meeting location. She further explained that the meetings do 
not typically yield much updates, and recommended that the frequency be changed to every 6 months in 
order to save money for the District due to Director Fees.  

 The Board suggested that CAC meetings should be arranged only when major updates need to be shared.   
 
*No action was taken on this item.  
 

2. Discussion:  New Vehicle to Replace 2000 GMC Sierra (Unit #003) 
 

 The Board Secretary stated that she mistakenly listed this item as an Action item on the agenda, when it 
was only supposed to be a Discussion item.  

 The GM echoed the points he brought up during the Operations Report, and mentioned that he would not be 
looking for action on this item until closer to the end of the Fiscal Year, to determine if there are available 
funds to purchase a new vehicle.  

 Director Tincher suggested that this item be held off until there are major issues with the GMC.  
 Director Wargo suggested that staff look into used vehicles, since the GMC is not used to travel long 

distances. Director Morris responded that new vehicles come with a warranty. The GM said he would look 
into used vehicles as well when this item comes up again.  

 
PUBLIC COMMENTS  
 

Any person may address the Board of Directors at this time on any matter within the subject matter jurisdiction of the 
Cabazon Water District that is not listed on the agenda; however, any matter that requires action will be referred to 
staff for investigation and reported at a subsequent Board of Directors meeting.  The Board of Directors is prohibited 
by law from discussing or taking immediate action on items during this public comment period.  To comment on 
specific agenda items, please advise the Board secretary prior to the meeting. Each public comment will be limited to 
three (3) minutes.  Individuals may not give their time away to another spokesperson. After two (2) minutes, the 
speaker will be notified that he/she has one (1) minute remaining. AB 1234 ORAL REPORTS (Gov. Code Sec. 
53232.3(d)) 
 

 James Brock explained that a flyer was sent with his water bill showing the water rates for 2023, including 
the meter charge and usage rates. He pointed out that there is no way for a customer to know their meter 
size unless they contact the District, and asked if there could be a way to let customers know their meter 
size.  

 
GENERAL MANAGER/BOARD COMMENTS 
 

1. Future Agenda Items 
 

The Board Chair or the majority of the Board may direct staff to investigate and report back to an 
individual(s) and the Board on matters suggested or direct the General Manager/Board Secretary to 
place the matter on a future Board meeting. 

 

 Suggested agenda items from the Public. 

 Suggested agenda items from Management. 
 Broadway/Main Cluster Valve project bids 
 Recoating of Tanks project engineering proposal 
 Update of Isolation Valves installation  

Page 16 of 191



Cabazon Water District 

December 14, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

4 

 

Page 4 of 4 
 

 Suggested agenda items from Board Members. 
 Discussion of CWSA benefits  

 
2. Management Comments 
 

Staff members may speak on items of information not requiring comment or discussion to the Board 
and public. Topics which may be included on a future meeting agenda may be presented but cannot 
be discussed. (3 minutes) 

 
3. Board Member Comments 

 
Board members may speak on items of information not requiring comment or discussion to the 
Board and public. (3 minutes) 

 
MISCELLANEOUS 
 

1. Future Board Items/Next Board Meeting Date(s) 
 

a. Community Water Systems Alliance Meeting – Wednesday, Dec. 28, 2022, 8:30 am 
b. Collaborative Agencies Meeting at Beaumont Unified School District – Jan. 4, 2023, 5:00 pm  
c. Finance & Audit Workshop – Tuesday, Jan. 17, 2023, 5:00 pm 
d. Regular Board Meeting – Tuesday, Jan. 17, 2023, 6:00 pm  
e. San Gorgonio Pass Regional Water Alliance Meeting – Monday, Jan. 23, 2023, 5:00 pm 
f. Community Action Committee Meeting – TBD – 2023  
g. Personnel Committee – TBD 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 

Motion to adjourn at 6:38 PM made by Director Morris and 2nd by Director Tincher 
 
Director Brock - Aye 
Director Tincher - Aye 
Director Morris - Aye 
Director Davis - Aye 
Director Wargo - Aye 
 
 
Meeting adjourned at 6:38 PM on Wednesday, December 14, 2022 
 
 
 
____________________________________        
Sarah Wargo, Board Chair     Evelyn Aguilar, Secretary 
Board of Directors      Board of Directors 
Cabazon Water District      Cabazon Water District 
 

ADA Compliance Issues 
 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act & Government Code Section 54954.2, if special assistance is needed to participate in a 
Board meeting, please contact the Clerk of the Board at (951) 849-4442.  Notification of at least 48 hours prior to meeting time will assist staff 
in assuring that reasonable arrangements can be made to provide access. 

Page 17 of 191



Page 18 of 191



Page 19 of 191



Cabazon Water District 

January 17, 2023 Regular Board Meeting 

Business (951) 849-4442  FAX (951) 849-2519 

 

New Business 

 

 

1. Discussion/Action Item: 

[TAB 1] 

 

Award of Contract for Broadway/Main Cluster Valve 

Repair; 4 Bids:  

a. MCC Equipment Rentals, Inc. (lowest bidder)  

b. Borden Excavating, Inc.  

c. T.E. Roberts, Inc.  

d. Weka, Inc. 

 

Attachments:  

1. K&S’s Recommendation of Award to MCC Equipment 

Rentals, Inc.   

2. MCC Equipment Rentals, Inc. Bid Documents  

3. Borden Excavating, Inc. Bid Documents  

4. T.E. Roberts, Inc. Bid Documents  

5. Weka, Inc. Bid Documents 

 

Page 20 of 191



 

 
K R I E G E R  &  S T E W A R T ,  I N C O R P O R A T E D  

Mailing Address:  3890 Orange Street #1509, Riverside, CA  92502 
Office Address: 3602 University Avenue, Riverside, CA  92501 

Tel: (951) 684-6900  •  Fax: (951) 684-6986  •  www.kriegerandstewart.com 

M E M O R A N D U M 

 

 
TO: MICHAEL POLLACK, GENERAL MANAGER  FILE:  683-11.22.5 F/C 

CABAZON WATER DISTRICT 

 

FROM: TRAVIS R. ROMEYN  TRR DATE:  1/11/2023 

 KRIEGER & STEWART, INCORPORATED 

 

SUBJECT: BROADWAY AND MAIN STREET CLUSTER VALVE REPLACEMENT PROJECT 

RECOMMENDATION OF AWARD 

 

On Monday, January 9, 2023, the District received four bids for subject project.  The bid amounts are as 

follows: 

 

Contractor Bid Amount 

MCC Equipment Rentals, Inc. $68,913.00 

Borden Excavating, Inc. $72,777.00 

T.E. Roberts, Inc. $104,683.00 

Weka, Inc. $117,160.00 

 

The low bidder is MCC Equipment Rentals, Inc. with a Total Bid in the amount of $68,913.00.   

 

All components of MCC Equipment Rentals, Inc.'s bid were complete and met the requirements of the 

Contract Documents. 

 

Since MCC Equipment Rentals, Inc. is an experienced, capable contractor with a current Class A (General 

Engineering) Contractor's License (No. 819356) which enables the company to perform the work under 

California State Law, Krieger & Stewart recommends awarding the contract to MCC Equipment Rentals, 

Inc. for $68,913.00. 

 

TRR/lge 

683-11P22-RECAWARD 

Page 21 of 191



Page 22 of 191



Page 23 of 191



Page 24 of 191



Page 25 of 191



Page 26 of 191



Page 27 of 191



Page 28 of 191



Page 29 of 191



Page 30 of 191



Page 31 of 191



Page 32 of 191



Page 33 of 191



Page 34 of 191



Page 35 of 191



Page 36 of 191



Page 37 of 191



Page 38 of 191



Page 39 of 191



Page 40 of 191



Page 41 of 191



Page 42 of 191



Page 43 of 191



Page 44 of 191

eaguilar
Highlight



Page 45 of 191



Page 46 of 191



Page 47 of 191



Page 48 of 191



Page 49 of 191



Page 50 of 191



Page 51 of 191



Page 52 of 191



Page 53 of 191



Page 54 of 191



Page 55 of 191



Page 56 of 191



Page 57 of 191



Page 58 of 191



Page 59 of 191



Page 60 of 191



Page 61 of 191



Page 62 of 191



Page 63 of 191



Page 64 of 191



Page 65 of 191



Page 66 of 191



Page 67 of 191



Page 68 of 191



Page 69 of 191



Page 70 of 191



Page 71 of 191



Page 72 of 191



Page 73 of 191



Page 74 of 191



Page 75 of 191



Page 76 of 191

eaguilar
Highlight



Page 77 of 191



Page 78 of 191



Page 79 of 191



Page 80 of 191



Page 81 of 191



Page 82 of 191



Page 83 of 191



Page 84 of 191



Page 85 of 191



Page 86 of 191



Page 87 of 191



Page 88 of 191



Page 89 of 191



Page 90 of 191



Page 91 of 191



Page 92 of 191



Page 93 of 191



Page 94 of 191



Page 95 of 191



Page 96 of 191



Page 97 of 191



Page 98 of 191



Page 99 of 191



Page 100 of 191



Page 101 of 191



Page 102 of 191



Page 103 of 191



Page 104 of 191



Page 105 of 191



Page 106 of 191



Page 107 of 191

eaguilar
Highlight



Page 108 of 191



Page 109 of 191



Page 110 of 191



Page 111 of 191



Page 112 of 191

eaguilar
Highlight



Page 113 of 191



Page 114 of 191



Page 115 of 191



Page 116 of 191



Page 117 of 191



Page 118 of 191



Page 119 of 191



Page 120 of 191



Page 121 of 191



Page 122 of 191



Page 123 of 191



Page 124 of 191



Page 125 of 191



Page 126 of 191



Page 127 of 191



Page 128 of 191



Page 129 of 191



Page 130 of 191



Page 131 of 191



Page 132 of 191



Page 133 of 191



Page 134 of 191



 Page 135 of 191



Page 136 of 191



Page 137 of 191



Page 138 of 191



Page 139 of 191



Page 140 of 191



Page 141 of 191



Page 142 of 191



Page 143 of 191

eaguilar
Highlight



Page 144 of 191



Page 145 of 191



Page 146 of 191



Page 147 of 191



Page 148 of 191



Page 149 of 191



Page 150 of 191



Page 151 of 191



Page 152 of 191



Page 153 of 191



Page 154 of 191



Page 155 of 191



Page 156 of 191



Page 157 of 191



Page 158 of 191



Page 159 of 191



Page 160 of 191



Page 161 of 191



Page 162 of 191



Page 163 of 191



Page 164 of 191



Page 165 of 191



Page 166 of 191



Page 167 of 191



Page 168 of 191



Page 169 of 191



Page 170 of 191



Page 171 of 191



Page 172 of 191



Page 173 of 191



Page 174 of 191



Page 175 of 191



Page 176 of 191



Page 177 of 191



Page 178 of 191



Page 179 of 191



Page 180 of 191



Page 181 of 191



Page 182 of 191



Page 183 of 191



Cabazon Water District 

January 17, 2023 Regular Board Meeting 

Business (951) 849-4442  FAX (951) 849-2519 

 

New Business 

 

 

2. Discussion/Action Item: 

[TAB 2] 

 

Proposal by Krieger & Stewart regarding the ARPA-

funded Reservoir  Corrosion Repair/Prevention Project 

 

 

Attachments:  

1. Krieger & Stewart Proposal (Scope of Work and Estimate) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 184 of 191



K R I E G E R  &  S T E W A R T ,  I N C O R P O R A T E D  
Mailing Address:  3890 Orange Street #1509, Riverside, CA  92502 

Office Address: 3602 University Avenue, Riverside, CA  92501 
Tel: (951) 684-6900  •  Fax: (951) 684-6986  •  www.kriegerandstewart.com 

CABAZON WATER DISTRICT 
RESERVOIR NOS. 2, 3, AND 4 CORROSION REPAIR/PREVENTION PROJECT 

SCOPE OF ENGINEERING SERVICES 

Krieger & Stewart will provide the following engineering services for the design and construction of the corrosion 
repair/prevention project on Reservoir Nos. 2, 3, and 4: 

• Preparation of Contract Documents, including specifications.  Due to the nature of the project, we do not
anticipate drawings or exhibits will be required.

o Note:  Our scope does not include USA marking and potholing, which we do not anticipate is required
on this project.  It also does not include testing of the existing paint, which we recommend the District
consider if there are concerns that it may contain lead or asbestos.

• Bidding phase support services, including coordinating legal advertising, distributing and tracking Contract
Document distribution to prospective bidders, answering questions about or providing clarifications regarding
the Contract Documents, conducting a pre-bid meeting, and preparing and distributing addenda, if necessary,
during the bid period; reviewing the bids received and preparing a Recommendation of Award Memorandum
summarizing the results of bids received following the bid opening, and coordinating and conforming executed
Contract Documents between the Contractor and the District.

• Construction phase support services, including conducting preconstruction and progress meetings, contract
administration and engineering, ten (10) material and shop drawing submittal reviews, four (4) partial payment
request reviews, and five (5) RFI and clarification reviews.

• Construction inspection services, including three (3) full days of steel repair inspection, and twenty (20) days
of blast/coating inspection.  Note that these are quoted as full days, but can also be provided as half days when
possible to provide more flexible inspection coverage.

o Note: Our scope does not include construction staking/control survey, which we do not anticipate
is required on this project.

• Preparation of project closeout documents following construction.

Note that our proposal amount is based on the budgetary numbers determined during preparation of the ARPA 
funding agreement with the County of Riverside. 

TRR/blt 
683-11P23-PRO
(12/7/2022)

Page 185 of 191



HOURS $ HOURS $ HOURS $ HOURS $ HOURS $

1. CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS & SPECIFICATIONS 1 270 3 723 20 4,340 12 1,536 6,869

2. BIDDING PHASE SUPPORT 1 270 2 482 2 434 12 1,536 2,722

3. CONSTRUCTION PHASE SUPPORT 1 270 8 1,928 30 6,510 184 27,968 12 1,536 38,212

4. PROJECT CLOSEOUT 2 482 2 434 4 512 1,428

SUBTOTAL: 3 810 15 3,615 54 11,718 184 27,968 40 5,120 49,231

REIMBURSABLES (2% OF K&S FEES ONLY): 985

ENGINEERING SERVICES TOTAL (ROUNDED): 50,000
HOURLY RATES PER K&S 2023 FEE SCHEDULE:
(1) PRINCIPAL ENGINEER @ $270 /Hr
(2) SENIOR ENGINEER II @ $241 /Hr
(3) ASSOCIATE ENGINEER III @ $217 /Hr
(4) CONSTRUCTION INSPECTOR @ $152 /Hr
(5) STAFF TECHNICIAN III @ $128 /Hr

CABAZON WATER DISTRICT
RESERVOIR NOS. 2, 3, AND 4 CORROSION REPAIR/PREVENTION PROJECT 

 
ESTIMATED FEES FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES

CONSTRUCTION 
INSPECTOR (4)

SUPPORT 
SERVICES (5)

KRIEGER & STEWART

TOTAL
PROJECT 

MANAGER (2)
PRINCIPAL 

IN CHARGE (1)
PROJECT 

ENGINEER (3)
TASK / COMPONENT $

683-11P23-PRO.xlsx (12/7/2022) Page 186 of 191



Cabazon Water District 

January 17, 2023 Regular Board Meeting 

Business (951) 849-4442  FAX (951) 849-2519 

New Business 

 

 

3. Discussion/Action Item: 

[TAB 3] 

 

Community Water Systems Alliance (“CWSA”) Benefits 

 

 

*No Attachments:  

CWSA is an organization that helps give disadvantaged 

communities a voice in Sacramento regarding State Senate and 

Assembly Bills dealing with water quality and tax.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 187 of 191



Cabazon Water District 

January 17, 2023 Regular Board Meeting 

Business (951) 849-4442  FAX (951) 849-2519 

New Business 

4. Discussion/Action Item:

[TAB 4] 

Realignment of Cabazon Water District Director 

Committees  

a. Collaborative Agencies

b. Community Action Committee

c. Community Water Systems Alliance Committee

d. Finance and Audit Committee

e. Personnel Committee

f. San Gorgonio Pass Regional Water Alliance Committee

g. Special Projects Committee

Attachments: 

1. Current List of Committees

Page 188 of 191



Cabazon Water District 
14816 Broadway Street • P.O. Box 297 

Cabazon, California 92230 

Positions and Committees of the Board of Directors (as of 01/12/2023)

Position/Committee Description Current Directors on 

Committee 

Current 

Alternate 

1. Board Chair Wargo 

2. Board Vice Chair Davis 

3. Collaborative Agencies

(Ad hoc)
 At least 1 member attends Collaborative Agencies meetings every

other month to update other Agencies about CWD business.

 Report and distribute information to the Board at the next regular

Board meeting.

1. Morris

2. Wargo

  Davis 

4. Community Action Committee

(CAC - Ad hoc)
 Requires two (2) Board members.

 Meet with property owners to discuss Grant Funding

Opportunities, Riv. Co. construction requirements, Water Service

application process, etc. as information becomes available.

 Report and distribute information to the Board at the next regular

Board meeting.

1. Davis

2. Morris

  Brock 

Page 189 of 191



Business (951) 849-4442 • FAX (951) 849-2519 

5. Community Water System

Alliance Committee

(CWSA - Ad hoc)

 Requires two (2) Board members.

 Requires at least one (1) member of the CWSA - Ad hoc

committee to commit to attend CWSA meetings, special events,

and trips approved by the Board.

 Any Board members may attain meetings, special events, and trips.  

It is recommended that no more than two (2) Board members to

participate on trips to represent the District, the community of

Cabazon, and the CWSA.

 The General Manager or Business Admin. Assistant may attain

meetings, special events, and trips with Board members approved

by the Board.

 Board members participating in these meetings, special events, and 

trips shall report and distribute information to the Board at the next 

regular Board meeting.

1. Davis

2. Morris

  Brock 

6. Finance and Audit Committee

(FAC - Ad hoc)
 Requires two (2) Board members to meet twice per month.

 Review all District payables.

 Dual signatures on all District checks issued.

 Meet with the Business Admin. Assistant and Financial Advisor in

reviewing the proposed fiscal year budgets to report to the Board

 Meet with the General Manager, Business Admin. Assistant, and

other experts or consultants regarding the cost purpose of special

projects and Capital Improvement Projects (CIP) to report to the

Board.

 Other major financial issues to report to the Board.

1. Wargo

2. Tincher

  Morris 

7. Personnel Committee

(Ad hoc)
 Requires two (2) Board members

 Meet with the General Manager annually (on or before June 1st of

each year) to render a recommendation on the General Manager’s

annual performance evaluation.

 Meet with the General Manager, Business Admin. Assistant, legal

counsel, other labor experts or consultants regarding any District

employee(s) petitioning the Board to appeal a disciplinary action.

 Meet with the District’s legal counsel on all disciplinary issues

involving the General Manager or Board Secretary.

1. Tincher

2. Brock

  Wargo 

Page 190 of 191



Business (951) 849-4442 • FAX (951) 849-2519 

8. San Gorgonio Pass Regional

Water Alliance Committee

(SGPRWA - Ad hoc)

 Requires two (2) Board members.

 Requires at least one (1) member of the SGPRWA - Ad hoc

committee to commit to attend SGPRWA monthly meetings and

special events.

 Any Board members may attain meetings, special events, and trips.  

It is recommended that no more than two (2) Board members to

participate on trips to represent the District, the community of

Cabazon, and the SGPRWA.

 The General Manager or Business Admin. Assistant may attend

meetings, special events, and trips with Board members approved

by the Board.

 Board members participating in these meetings, special events, and 

trips shall report and distribute information to the Board at the next 

regular Board meeting.

1. Morris

2. Brock

9. Special Projects Committee

(Ad hoc)
 Requires two (2) Board members.

 Both Board members shall meet with the General Manager,

Business Admin. Assistant, general counsel, other experts or

consultants regarding Special projects and Southern California

Edison – Public Safety Power Shut-off (SCE PSPS) matters.

 Both Board members will provide input during regular Board

meeting discussions regarding Special projects, SCE PSPS issues,

and proposed procedures.

1. Wargo

2. Tincher

  Davis 

Page 191 of 191


	FAC Agenda 
	Financials

	Regular Agenda
	Consent Calendar
	TAB 1 - Bids for Broadway/Main Cluster Valve 
	MCC Bid 
	MCC Bid Amount 

	Borden Bid 
	Borden Bid Amount 

	T.E. Roberts Bid
	T.E. Roberts Bid Amount

	Weka Bid 
	Weka Bid Amount 


	TAB 2 - Tank Recoating 
	TAB 3 - CWSA 
	TAB 4 - CWD Committees




